

STANBIC IBTC BANK

CODE OF ETHICS AND CONDUCT



Table of Contents	
Part 1: Introduction to our Code of Ethics and Conduct, its application, and how to access advice and report concerns or violations	3
1 Introduction	3
1.1 A Message from Stanbic IBTC, CE	3
2 Our Code at a glance	5
3 Applying our Code of Ethics and Conduct	6
3.1 Scope of the Code	6
3.2 Employees' responsibilities	6
3.3 Third-parties' responsibilities	6
3.4 Putting the Code into practice	6
4 Seeking advice and reporting concerns	8
4.1 It is your responsibility to seek advice	8
4.2 You must report any concerns or violations of the Code	8
4.3 Steps in the investigation process	9
Part 2: The Code of Ethics and Conduct in Practice	11
Personal conduct	11
1. We promote diversity and inclusion	11
2. We do not tolerate unfair discrimination, bullying and harassment	11
3. We support our employees to develop their skills and careers	11
4. We ensure performance management processes enable constructive feedback and employee development	12
5. We recognise and reward our people fairly and we incentivise ethical behaviour	12
6. We encourage innovation and collaboration to achieve better client outcomes	12
7. We take responsibility for how we represent the Group in public	12
8. We ensure that gift and entertainment giving or receiving is carefully managed and declared to prevent improprie	ety 13
9. We take all reasonable steps to prevent or fairly manage conflicts of interest	13
10. We protect the Group's physical and information assets	14
We maintain a healthy and safe work environment	1/

S	ocietal conduct – our impacts on society and the environment	14
1.	We strive to create shared value for our stakeholders, including shareholders, clients, employees and the societies in which we operate.	14
2.	We understand and manage our social, economic and environmental impact	14
3.	We protect human rights	15
4.	We promote financial inclusion	15
5.	We engage constructively with stakeholders	16
6.	We are responsible in our procurement practices and third-party relationships	16
7.	We commit to reducing our operational and financed carbon emissions in line with the Group's climate policy and the Paris Agreement	17
8.	We have clear rules that govern corporate political action and funding political parties	17
9.	We undertake corporate social investment (CSI) that creates sustainable benefits for our communities	17
0	ur conduct in the market	18
1.	We treat our clients fairly	18
2.	We communicate effectively and proactively with our clients	18
з.	We are responsive to client complaints	19
4.	We value the right to privacy and take all reasonable steps to ensure we process personal information lawfully	19
5.	We use data and artificial intelligence responsibly	20
6.	We proactively detect and prevent financial crime	20
7.	We support the orderly, fair and transparent functioning of financial markets and do not engage with anti-competitive behaviour	20
8.	We ensure commission payments are legitimate and legal	21
9.	We keep appropriate records	21
10.	We ensure the accurate public reporting of our financial statements and transparency on tax matters	21
G	lossary of terms	22

Part 1: Introduction to our Code of Ethics and Conduct, its application, and how to access advice and report concerns or violations

1. Introduction

The Stanbic IBTC business depends on our reputation as a trusted partner. This reputation rests on our values, ethics, and conduct.

- Our **values** are our shared beliefs about who we are, what we stand for, what we want to do or achieve; the principles and ideals that help us decide what is most important.
- Our ethics are the principles we have adopted, based on our values, to guide our decisionmaking, behaviours, and interactions with our diverse stakeholders. Our ethics inform how we conduct ourselves in terms of how we treat one another, our clients and other stakeholders, how we manage our impacts on society and the environment, and what we believe to be the core purpose and objectives of our business.
- Our values and ethics shape our **conduct** at the individual. Our conduct is governed by **policies, standards and risk management controls.**
- Our Code of Ethics and Conduct (Code) provides the foundation for these policies, standards and controls, ensuring that our values and ethics are reflected in the way we make decisions and engage with our stakeholders, and that we hold one another accountable for meeting the ethical and conduct requirements we have set for the Stanbic IBTC. The Code is based on three pillars:
 - Personal Conduct: How we treat one another as colleagues, create an inclusive and supportive culture, support skills development and career progression
 - Societal Conduct: How we manage our impacts on diverse stakeholders, society and the environment
 - Conduct in the Market: How we ensure that our clients' interests are at the centre of our business, clients are treated fairly, and our market conduct is fair and reasonable.

The Code articulates our expectations of Stanbic IBTC employees. The Code aligns with global and national regulatory and governance standards across our operations. It helps us ensure that we conduct ourselves lawfully and within the frameworks of the legal environments in which we operate. It provides the benchmark against which we assess our performance, as individuals and as a bank. It aims to empower us to make principle-based decisions, and to encourage honest and robust discussion to determine the appropriate course of action in any situation.

1.1 A Message from Stanbic IBTC, CE

Achieving our purpose depends on our reputation as a trusted partner in Nigeria. Our values and Code of Ethics and Conduct play a critical role in securing this trust, shaping our organisational culture and guiding our behaviours. Our Code is ethics in practice - it determines how we do business, as individuals and as an organisation.

Our Code of Ethics and Conduct recognises our role as an integral part of the societies in which we operate. It requires us to act in accordance with what is good for these societies and what is good for the Bank, to take a long-term view, and work to maximise the positive social, economic and environmental impact of our business activities.

Our Code guides us to act honestly, fairly and with integrity, to take accountability for our decisions, and to have due care and consideration for the impact of our actions and decisions on others. It helps us to ensure that we are doing the right business, the right way, and that we are placing the interests of our customers, clients and the communities impacted by our business at the centre of our decision-making.

Our employees represent a widely diverse group of people. We come from different cultures and backgrounds, with different perspectives, life experiences and belief systems. We recognise and celebrate our diversity. We also recognise that our cohesion and effectiveness as an organisation depends on every one of us signing up to this shared set of values, ethical principles and behaviours, to guide how we work together and serve our customers, clients and communities.

Together with the other members of our board and executive management, I take responsibility for ensuring that every Stanbic IBTC employee adheres to our Code of Ethics and Conduct. I expect every employee to use this Code to guide your behaviour and to inform your decisions and day to day interactions. Use this document as your first point of call when you're uncertain of the right course of action. Act promptly should you observe behaviours or actions that are not in line with the Code by using the relevant reporting mechanisms. Remember that every one of us is an ambassador of the Stanbic IBTC brand. We are all responsible for ensuring that we live up to the commitments contained in this Code.

2. Our Code at a glance

Our personal conduct – our responsibilities to one another and to Stanbic IBTC

- 1. We promote diversity and inclusion.
- 2. We do not tolerate unfair discrimination, bullying or harassment.
- 3. We support our employees to develop their skills and careers.
- 4. We ensure performance management processes enable constructive feedback and employee development.
- 5. We recognise and reward our people fairly and we incentivise ethical behaviour.
- 6. We encourage innovation and collaboration to achieve better client outcomes.
- 7. We take responsibility for how we represent Stanbic IBTC in public.
- 8. We ensure that gift and entertainment giving or receiving is carefully managed and declared to prevent impropriety.
- 9. We take all reasonable steps to prevent or fairly manage potential conflicts of interest.
- 10. We protect Stanbic IBTC physical and information assets.
- 11. We maintain a healthy and safe work environment.
- 12. We enjoy freedom of association and collective organisation.

Societal conduct – our impact on society and the environment

- 1. We understand and manage our social, economic and environmental (SEE) impacts.
- 2. We strive to create shared value for our stakeholders, including shareholders, clients, employees and the societies in which we operate, in line with our SEE value driver.
- 3. We protect human rights.
- 4. We promote financial inclusion.
- 5. We engage constructively with our stakeholders.
- 6. We are responsible in our procurement practices and third-party relationships.
- 7. We undertake corporate social investment that creates sustainable benefits for our communities.

Our conduct in the market - how we do business

- 1. We treat our clients fairly.
- 2. We communicate effectively and proactively with our clients.
- 3. We are responsive to client complaints.
- 4. We value the right to privacy and take all reasonable steps to ensure we process personal information lawfully
- 5. We use data and artificial intelligence responsibly.
- 6. We proactively detect and prevent financial crime.
- 7. We support the orderly, fair and transparent functioning of financial markets and do not engage in anti-competitive behaviour.
- 8. We ensure commission payments are legitimate and legal.
- 9. We keep appropriate records.
- 10. We ensure the accurate public reporting of our financial statements and transparency on tax matters.

3. Applying our Code of Ethics and Conduct

3.1 Scope of the Code

The Code applies to all Stanbic IBTC employees, full-time and part-time, and consultants. It applies to our Board members, including non-executives. Adherence to the values, principles and behaviours described in the Code is an integral part of Stanbic IBTCperformance management process.

The Code is a public document. We expect our stakeholders to hold us to account in terms of the Code.

3.2 Employees' responsibilities

All employees are required to read, understand and attest to follow the Code on joining the Stanbic IBTC. All employees complete annual mandatory training on the Code. We regard failure to comply with the Code as a violation of the terms of employment, which may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

3.3 Third-parties' responsibilities

We encourage our partners, contracted parties, suppliers and agents to adopt an equivalent approach. We require all third parties with whom we contract to provide services to Stanbic IBTC to attest to the Third-party Code of Conduct, which is based on this Code. Failure to comply with the Third-party Code of Conduct is regarded as a violation of the terms of contract and may result in termination of the contract.

3.4 Putting the Code into practice

While our Code of Ethics and Conduct provides guidance about expected and prohibited behaviours, applying the Code requires us to think carefully about the decisions we are making and our options in any given situation. The questions below provide a useful framework for this purpose.

Is the decision/action in line with local laws?

• Is it legal?

Is the decision/action in line with Stanbic IBTC values and policies?

- Does it align with the spirit and intention of our Stanbic IBTC values?
- Does it align with the commitments expressed in our Code of Ethics and Conduct?
- Does it comply with Stanbic IBTC policies and conduct standards?

How will the decision/action impact Stanbic IBTC reputation?

- Is it in line with societal expectations of Stanbic IBTC?
- Does it create value for our diverse stakeholders?
- Will it harm Stanbic IBTC's reputation?
- Would I be comfortable if it was published in the news or on social media?
- Would I be comfortable if my name was linked to this issue in public?

Would I want to be treated this way?

• Am I comfortable that I am treating others in a way I would like to be treated?

Does this feel like the right thing to do?

- Do I have the relevant information to assess my options appropriately?
- Can I explain it with a clear conscience to my friends, family, colleagues?

4. Seeking advice and reporting concerns

4.1 It is your responsibility to seek advice

You have an obligation to seek advice if you are uncertain about the ethics of any decision or course of action. You can use informal channels to seek advice. If you are faced with questions or issues not directly covered by the Code, refer to related Stanbic IBTC policies (links to relevant policies are included in the Code). If there appears to be a conflict between the Code and local laws and regulations, seek advice.

Options for seeking advice include your line manager or one of your team's business partners, such as People and Culture, Risk, or Compliance – depending on the nature of the issue. You have a right to request that your query or concern is treated confidentially. Confidentiality means that the person to whom you speak will know your identity, but will not make it known to anyone else, unless you agree to this as part of the resolution process, or if there is a legal obligation to do so, or if the issue poses a serious reputational risk to Stanbic IBTC or any legal entity within Stanbic IBTC.

Issues that are raised for advice will be addressed through one or more of the following mechanisms:

- Reference to appropriate policies or procedures
- One on one discussion between the person raising the issue, and their manager or appropriate business partner (People and Culture, Risk or Compliance)
- Facilitation of a discussion among the affected parties
- Facilitation of a discussion among the affected parties and other knowledgeable employees (e.g. appropriate business partners or enabling functions)
- Referral to the ethics reporting process.

4.2 You must report any concerns or violations of the Code

If you are aware of an act, omission, behaviour or incident you believe deviates from Stanbic IBTC's Code of Ethics and Conduct, you are required to report this. We have various channels available for employees to speak up, raise concerns and/or escalate or report financial and non-financial misconduct and unethical behaviour. If you suspect a breach of the Code, you must use the formal reporting channels described below.

Concerns can be raised confidentially (see definition above) or anonymously. Anonymity means that nobody will know your identity when you report. We encourage confidential rather than anonymous reporting, as anonymous reports are often difficult to investigate.

You can report any issue to:

- Your line manager, appropriate business partner (People and Culture, Risk or Compliance), or the Conduct lead for your business area
- Group Forensic Services (GFS) or the Head of Investigations and Fraud Risk (IFR) incountry
 - i) Internal Whistleblowing channels:
 - Whistleblowing reports can be made internally to the Bank, through any of the following Whistleblowing channels:

- Directly to your responsible line manager;
- Head: Group Forensic Services (GFS);
- Head of IFR;
- The Deloitte Whistleblowing line/ E-mail
 - o 020 1 422 7777 or 020 1 271 7739
 - o International +27 31571 5459
 - whistleblowingline@tip-offs.com
- Reports received via the above internal Whistleblowing channels must be routed to GFS, where these reports will be analysed and screened for appropriate action and all reports warranting a forensic investigation will be investigated by GFS or IFR.
- ii) External Whistleblowing Channels:
 - Whistle blowers may also make Whistleblowing reports to persons or bodies other than internally to the Bank (e.g. the Central Bank of Nigeria – <u>anticorruptionunit@cbn.gov.ng</u>)
 - The reports may however only be protected by the law if they are made in good faith and the whistle blower believes that the information is substantially true.
 - A legal representative, provided it is made with the object of and while obtaining legal advice.
 - The Auditor General;
 - Public Protector, or
 - A prescribed person/body who the whistle blower reasonably believes would usually deal with these matters.
- FraudStop (not anonymous) for financial crimes including fraud, theft, bribery, corruption and collusion by employees of Stanbic IBTC, clients, suppliers, business partners, and third parties
- The independent, confidential whistleblowing hotline, which has 3 options:
 - Totally anonymous you don't need to provide your name or any information that might reveal your identity.
 - Partially anonymous you can specify that your personal details may be known only to the Tip-offs Anonymous contact centre that manages the whistleblowing reporting channel. At no point will these details be shared with Stanbic IBTC.
 - Confidential disclosure If you agree to the confidential disclosure of your personal details, then your name and contact details will be known to the Tip-offs Anonymous contact centre and the investigators who will conduct the investigation.

To use the whistleblowing hotline:

- Step 1 Dial the number specified
- Step 2 Make the disclosure, providing as much information as possible.
- **Step 3 -** Receive a unique reference number to use for subsequent follow-ups and to provide additional information.

Our <u>whistleblowing policy</u> provides for the protected disclosure of any attempted, suspected or actual and/or unlawful, irregular or unethical behaviour that employees come across in Stanbic IBTC. This policy exists to ensure that you will not be disadvantaged in any way for reporting legitimate concerns in good faith or on the basis of a reasonable belief. For protection to apply, you are not expected to prove the truth of an allegation, but you do need to show that there are sufficient grounds for concern.

Stanbic IBTC is not obliged to protect a whistleblower who makes a false disclosure in bad faith or maliciously, or who unfairly or unjustly discredits another person. Appropriate disciplinary action will be taken against the person concerned in these cases. However, no action shall be taken against the individual(s) affected by the malicious whistle blowing.

4.3 Steps in the investigation process

- All reports received from the whistleblowing hotline are referred to Group Forensic Services (GFS), who assesses the reports and determines appropriate action.
- Where appropriate and where cases fall outside GFS mandate, cases may be referred to other Corporate Functions, such as People and Culture, Process and Conduct Investigation and/or the relevant head of business area or country. Concerns regarding social and environmental issues are referred to Corporate Citizenship team.
- GFS acknowledges receipt of disclosures made via the whistleblowing hotline in writing and informs the whistleblower (or the whistleblowing hotline if the matter was raised anonymously) whether or not the matter will be investigated.
- IFR will assess the merits of the report and may escalate to the Head of People and Culture (P&C), Process and Conduct Investigation team and/or the Business Unit Head to assess the matter. Anyone found to be engaging in the practice of retaliation may be subject to disciplinary action which may result in a dismissal.
- IFR will have oversight of the assessments of matters referred to P&C, Process and Conduct Investigation and/or the Business Unit and ensure that the matter is dealt with and feedback on the outcome of the matter is provided to the whistleblower through the whistleblowing hotline.
- A decision not to investigate may be taken if insufficient information is provided by the whistleblower, or the allegations do not impact the Bank or its employees, for example.
- If a decision to investigate is made, GFS will also communicate, where possible, the timeframe in which investigations will be completed or updates provided. Feedback timelines as provided by the Protected Disclosures Amendment Act 2017 are applied and adhered to.
- IFR conducts investigations in an independent and objective manner. All reasonable steps are taken to ensure that all aspects of the matter and associated evidence are examined.
- When investigations are concluded, feedback is provided to the whistleblower or to the whistleblowing hotline. Findings of matters that were referred to other business areas for

assessment are also reviewed by GFS, and GFS provides feedback on these matters to the whistleblower or the whistleblowing hotline.

- Due to confidentiality, details of the investigation outcome are not provided but rather feedback that confirms the necessary action in accordance with Stanbic IBTC policies.
- After an investigation, if it is recommended that a disciplinary enquiry will be necessary; the disciplinary enquiry will be initiated by IFR or Bank's Internal Control.

Part 2: The Code of Ethics and Conduct in Practice

Personal conduct

- 1. We promote diversity and inclusion Diversity and inclusion strategy
- 1.1 We value and encourage diversity and commit to ensuring that our people, at all levels of the workforce, reflect the diversity of the African continent.
- 1.2 We contribute to the creation of an inclusive culture in which all our people feel valued and respected, empowered to make their voice heard, able to be themselves, and to be able to bring their best selves to work, and able to perform at their best potential.
- 1.3 We treat all employees equitably, ensuring equitable access to opportunity, networks, resources and support.
- 1.4 We recognise that different people have different perspectives, and that these differences help us understand and respond to the diverse needs of our clients, and to nurture creativity and innovation. We commit to dealing with differences of perspective or misunderstanding constructively and in a spirit of mutual respect.

2. We do not tolerate unfair discrimination, bullying and harassment Harassment policy

Sexual harassment policy

- 2.1 We have zero tolerance for unfair discrimination, harassment and intimidation. We treat one another with dignity and respect and do not engage in behaviour that may be perceived to intimidate or harass others.
- 2.2 We are governed and protected by Stanbic IBTC policies on harassment, sexual harassment and unfair discrimination.
- 2.3 We create an environment where employees feel safe to speak-up or raise concerns of potential misconduct, unethical behaviour or policy violations, without fear of reprisal.
- 2.4 We deal promptly with reported cases, provide individuals with the necessary support, and ensure that they are not prejudiced or disadvantaged as a result of having laid a *bona fide* complaint.

3. We support our employees to develop their skills and careers People promise Career and Growth hub Learning and Development

- 3.1 We are committed to continuous learning and development. As employees we take advantage of the training and development opportunities available to grow in our careers. We are responsible for driving our own development and that of our teams.
- 3.2 As managers, we support our people to navigate change and identify and access opportunities for growth.
- 3.3 We strive to provide an environment in which our people are empowered to report and learn from mistakes and raise issues or concerns without fear of negative consequences.
- 3.4 We grow and develop our teams and are held accountable in this regard.
- 4. We ensure performance management processes enable constructive feedback and employee development

Performance Policy

- 4.1 As managers and employees, we agree clear and measurable performance goals and participate constructively and objectively in performance engagement processes.
- 4.2 We give and receive feedback responsibly and in the flow of work through our digital performance management tools.
- 4.3 We engage in regular performance coaching conversations to help drive personal improvement, growth and business contribution.

5. We recognise and reward our people fairly and we incentivise ethical behaviour

Remuneration Policy

- 5.1 We reward our people fairly. Our reward practices focus on the achievement of agreed deliverables and desired behaviours, enabling transparency in differentiating individual reward.
- 5.2 Our reward philosophy incentivises ethical behaviour that creates positive client outcomes. We avoid a culture that distorts motivations or encourages irresponsible behaviour.
- 5.3 Risk adjustment forms part of pay design. Individual awards include effective risk management and compliance criteria. Individual incentive awards are reviewed against any breaches and adjusted where required.

6. We encourage innovation and collaboration to achieve better client outcomes

- 6.1 We value teamwork and encourage and support collaboration within and across business areas, divisions and countries.
- 6.2 We ensure clarity regarding individual roles and responsibilities within the team and are individually accountable for our actions and deliverables.
- 6.3 We create clarity on the role and purpose of a team so that there is, in addition to individual accountability, collective accountability for our team deliverables and actions
- 6.4 We acknowledge both individual and team contributions and give credit accordingly.
- 6.5 We encourage innovation that adds value to products, services, solutions and processes, and encourage and reward employees who innovate within the risk parameters.

7. We take responsibility for how we represent the Bank in public <u>Trade Association Policy</u> Social Media Policy

- 7.1 We do not speak on behalf of the Stanbic IBTC unless our role specifically authorises us to communicate with industry bodies, regulators, the media or to undertake social media activities.
- 7.2 We recognise that any opinions expressed online, even in our personal capacity, could be perceived as being those of Stanbic IBTC. We ensure that we use social media responsibly and consider the possible impact on Stanbic IBTC.
- 7.3 We adhere to our participation in <u>trade associations policy</u> when engaging in associations and workgroups. We undertake adequate internal consultation to formulate our positions, and ensure our representatives are clearly mandated and supported to communicate our positions. Our representatives conduct themselves in a way that reflects the values and protects the reputation of Stanbic IBTC.

8. We ensure that gift and entertainment giving or receiving is carefully managed and declared to prevent impropriety

- 7.1 8.1 We adhere to the Stanbic IBTC gifts and entertainment policy.8.2 We never accept or give cash as a gift.
- 7.2 8.3 We do not accept or give gifts or entertainment if the impression is created that an improper business advantage could be secured.
- 7.3 8.4 We follow the applicable policies on prohibition or limits on gifts, in terms of value and frequency, above which we must declare acceptance or giving of gifts and entertainment.
- 9. We take all reasonable steps to prevent or fairly manage conflicts of interest <u>Gifts and entertainment policy</u> <u>Conflicts of interest policy</u> <u>Outside business interest policy</u>
- 9.1 We ensure that all reasonable steps have been taken to prevent or fairly manage potential conflicts of interest and thereby mitigate the effect that such conflicts of interest could have on our clients and Stanbic IBTC.
- 9.2 We take all reasonable steps to prevent conflicts of interest from constituting or giving rise to a material risk of damage to the interests of clients. Measures include appropriate and prior disclosure to our clients, subject to applicable confidentiality constraints, and disclosure of the steps taken to mitigate such conflicts.
- 9.3 We are required to disclose any personal or family interests that could influence business dealings within or with Stanbic IBTC.
- 9.4 We avoid conflicts of interest in our personal relationships at work. If we engage in close personal relationships at work, we do so with awareness of our professional responsibilities and are responsible for ensuring that the relationship does not raise any concerns about favouritism, bias, ethics or conflict of interest.
- 9.5 No family member may play any role in the recruitment and appointment process of another family member. No family member may have direct influence over the other's conditions of employment.
- 9.6 We adhere to Stanbic IBTC outside business interests (OBI) policy. We are required to disclose any OBI held by ourselves or our related parties. We obtain approval prior to entering any OBI. We declare our OBI annually and when our circumstances change, and ensure our information is accurate and current.

10. We protect the Bank's physical and information assets

- 10.1 We treat Stanbic IBTC's property, equipment and other physical assets with care. We do not use Stanbic IBTC assets for purposes other than company business.
- 10.2 We protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of information across our business.
- 10.3 We treat the Stanbic IBTC's intellectual property as a valuable business asset and disclose such information to relevant parties on a need-to-know basis only.
- 10.4 We lawfully process personal information of all relevant parties and consider the impact our actions may have before we make decisions.
- 11. We maintain a healthy and safe work environment Occupational health and safety policy

- 11.1 We take responsibility for helping to maintain a healthy and safe workplace for employees, contractors, clients and visitors, across all our places of work.
- 11.2 We take all reasonable measures to protect all persons against hazards to health and safety arising from or in connection with our work activities.
- 11.3 We comply with all applicable legislation and regulatory and supervisory requirements, and with Stanbic IBTC Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) standards.
- 11.4 As managers, we empower our people with appropriate knowledge and training to enable them to effectively execute their health and safety responsibilities.
- 11.5 We provide our service providers and contractors with information on their health and safety responsibilities and how their activities may impact Stanbic IBTC's operations.

Societal conduct – our impacts on society and the environment

- 1. We understand and manage our social, economic and environmental impact
- 1.1 We consider the positive and negative impacts of our decisions for the Bank and our stakeholders, and aim to maximise positive social, economic and environmental (SEE) impacts.
- 1.2 We strive to avoid, minimise or mitigate the negative SEE impacts associated with our business activities and operations on the environment and the communities in which we operate.
- 1.3 We assess and manage environmental and social (E&S) risk associated with business transactions, and integrate E&S screening, management and monitoring into our business and credit functions. We apply national laws and standards, our exceptions list, and applicable international standards when assessing transactions and undertaking due diligence.
- 1.4 We encourage our clients to meet relevant internationally accepted environmental and social risk standards and to address any gaps between these and their performance. We work with our clients to assist them to manage their material environmental and social risks and impacts.
- 1.5 We identify and develop opportunities to provide products and services that help our clients overcome social, economic and environmental challenges.
- 2. We strive to create shared value for our stakeholders, including shareholders, clients, employees and the societies in which we operate.
- 2.1 We strive to generate good and sustainable returns for our shareholders and to create shared value for the societies and environments in which we operate, in line with our SEE value driver.
- 2.2 We use our time and resources efficiently, and proactively identify and implement appropriate ways to increase revenues and decrease costs.

3. We protect human rights

3.1 We integrate respect for fundamental human rights into our day-to-day operations and in how we do business. We exercise due diligence in deciding who we do business with and understand the potential human rights impacts of our business relationships, purchasing, lending and investing.

- 3.2 We provide a work environment for our people that respects their human rights. This commitment is reflected in our people policies and practices.
- 3.3 We encourage our clients, suppliers and business partners to avoid human rights infringements in their businesses and support their adoption of good practices to manage their human rights impacts.
- 3.4 We take appropriate steps where we discover, or are made aware, that we have caused or contributed human rights abuses. This may include disciplinary action, exiting a business relationship, or constructive engagement with others to promote better practice.

4. We promote financial inclusion

- 4.1 We strive to provide financial services to individuals and communities that have had limited or no access to the formal financial services sector.
- 4.2 We ensure our products and services are relevant, affordable, accessible and convenient to diverse market segments, enabling clients to have access to affordable financial solutions and providing them with greater opportunities to participate meaningfully in the economy.
- 4.3 We strive to understand the challenges and barriers facing particular groups and communities, and to design appropriate and relevant products and services to address these challenges and barriers.
- 4.4 We provide financial literacy and consumer education programmes to support improved financial inclusion.

5. We engage constructively with stakeholders

- 5.1 We are accessible to our stakeholders and engage respectfully and constructively. We adhere to stakeholder engagement guidelines.
- 5.2 We listen to concerns and suggestions with an open mind. We are responsive to legitimate stakeholder concerns.
- 5.3 We will never attempt to influence anyone to obtain improper gain or advantage.
- 5.4 We take accountability for our decisions and strive for transparency in our disclosures and reporting.

6. We are responsible in our procurement practices and third-party relationships

- 6.1 We require third parties to Stanbic IBTC (partners, suppliers, service providers and contractors) to align with our Code of Ethics and Conduct and our Third-Party Code of Conduct.
- 6.2 We provide our Third-Party Code of Conduct to all suppliers.
- 6.3 We require all third parties to comply with all applicable local and international rules and standards, including environmental and social legislation.
- 6.4 We use the principles set out in the Third-Party Risk Management Policy to understand and manage third party relationships and risk exposure.
- 6.5 We undertake appropriate risk based due diligence before entering any relationship with a third-party to identify risks, including social, environmental, ethical and operational risks, associated with the relationship.
- 6.6 We expect all third parties to respect fundamental human rights and ensure that these considerations are integrated in their daily operations, including establishing a clean and safe working environment.

- 6.7 We aim to support local suppliers while ensuring alignment to Stanbic IBTC standards for quality, sustainability and commerciality.
- 6.8 We work with diverse partners to deliver our strategy. The principles governing these partnerships include commitments to mutual value creation and aligned incentives; fostering an environment of transparency and common ways of working; appropriate governance balanced with the freedom to collaborate and re-imagine how clients are served; clear commercial and contractual accountability and open escalation of issues as needed; equitable risk sharing; appropriate risk and compliance management to manage intellectual property, data management and related third party risks, and clarity on contribution.

7. We undertake corporate social investment (CSI) that creates sustainable benefits for our communities

Corporate social investment policy

- 7.1 We undertake all CSI activities in line with Stanbic IBTCCSI policy.
- 7.2 We encourage employee participation in CSI activities, and work with NGOs to structure appropriate volunteering opportunities for our employees.
- 7.3 We will never provide a charitable contribution to influence a business decision.
- 7.4 We do not use CSI and/or corporate hospitality to influence policy or regulatory outcomes.
- 7.5 We require all contributions requested by or benefitting a government official or entity to be cleared under Stanbic IBTC's anti-bribery and corruption policy.

Our conduct in the market

1. We treat our clients fairly

- 1.1 We ensure the interests of our clients are placed at the heart of all our business activities and that our decisions support the delivery of fair client outcomes.
- 1.2 We serve our clients honestly, with due skill, care and diligence.
- 1.3 We treat all clients objectively and fairly and apply policies equitably to all, regardless of individual differences. We do not tolerate unfair discrimination on any grounds.
- 1.4 We undertake appropriate risk based due diligence before entering or exiting any relationship with clients.
- 1.5 We act in our clients' best interests, providing them with products, services and solutions to suit their individual needs. We ensure client needs and eligibility of products are identified though a robust and objective evaluation process and consider their individual circumstances, and ability to bear associated costs or risks, when providing products and services.
- 1.6 We do not grant credit facilities without being aware of what our clients can afford to borrow, taking into account their current level of debt, and what we know about their ability to repay based on their present income and past behaviour.
- 1.7 We take a reasonable and responsible approach to clients who find themselves in financial difficulty.
- 1.8 We ensure incentives and reward structures are balanced and promote employee behaviour that creates fair client outcomes and maintains market integrity.

- 1.9 We do not promote products or services with the sole purpose of meeting sales or incentive targets.
- 1.10 We take all reasonable steps to prevent conflicts of interest from constituting or giving rise to a material risk of damage to the interests of clients. Measures include appropriate and prior disclosure to our clients, subject to applicable confidentiality constraints, and disclosure of the steps taken to mitigate such conflicts.

2. We communicate effectively and proactively with our clients

- 2.1 In all communications we act honourably, professionally and with due regard to the convenience of the client.
- 2.2 We ensure information provided to clients is factually correct; in plain language and not misleading; in a language the client understands¹, adequate and appropriate in the circumstances, taking account of the established or reasonably assumed level of knowledge of the client. We provide information timeously to give the client reasonably sufficient time to make an informed decision. We are clear regarding fees/costs payable.
- 2.3 We empower our clients to make informed decisions and take reasonable steps to ensure they understand the options we are offering. This includes clear information on a product's features and risks.
- 2.4 We provide clients with all relevant disclosures before, during and at final contract for the product or service.
- 2.5 We market with integrity and deliver on our promises.
- 2.6 We respond to our clients as quickly as we can, and we stay in touch with clients when delays are unavoidable.
- 2.7 We have the courage to decline clients' requests when we need to do so. We act promptly. We do not escalate the matter or delay when we know the answer will not change. We use plain language to explain why we are declining a client request. If possible, we suggest alternative solutions. When we are genuinely unsure how to proceed, we say so plainly, and we ask for assistance without delay.

3. We are responsive to client complaints Complaints management policy

- 3.1 We do not create unreasonable barriers when clients want to change products, switch providers, submit a claim or complaint.
- 3.2 Our complaints management systems are based on the principles of fairness, accessibility, responsiveness and efficiency to ensure the effective resolution of complaints and fair treatment of complainants. Each business area has a complaint resolution system (CRS) that enables the capturing and management of complaints.
- 3.3 We take reasonable steps to gather and investigate all relevant and appropriate information and circumstances. We adhere to our documented procedures which define escalation, decision-making, monitoring, record-keeping, oversight and review processes.
- 3.4 We maintain appropriate communication with complainants and their representatives. When we log a complaint, we provide the client with a reference number within 24 hours, and advise the client of the expected timeline to resolution and if any additional information is required. We provide regular progress reports (verbal or written) to the

¹ Based on reasonability and factors such as usage, practicality, expenses, region and the needs of clients.

complainant. We notify clients of the complaint investigation outcome, using their preferred method of communication.

3.5 We take personal responsibility for addressing complaints wherever we can. When we refer complaints to colleagues, we follow up to ensure that the complaint has been resolved.

4. We value the right to privacy and take all reasonable steps to ensure we process personal information lawfully

Data Privacy Policy

Information Risk Policy

- 4.1 We are committed to collecting and processing personal information in accordance with our responsibilities under applicable privacy regulations.
- 4.2 We make available the necessary channels and procedures to data subjects to exercise their rights as they relate to their personal information.
- 4.3 We implement necessary organisational and technical controls to mitigate risks that may compromise the confidentiality, integrity and availability of sensitive information.
- 4.4 We strive never to publicly disclose commercially sensitive, anti-competitive, private, proprietary or confidential information, nor to share any information that could result in a breach of data privacy, information security or physical security for Stanbic IBTC, its employees or our clients.
- 4.5 We follow the appropriate procedures if we become aware of information incidents or data privacy breaches in line with our risk management policies.

5. We use data and artificial intelligence responsibly

- 5.1 We apply guiding principles in the development and use of data, data analytics and AI solutions.
- 5.2 Our people are accountable for the design and outputs of AI and how these are used by the organization.
- 5.3 We ensure that our solutions are:
 - o people-centred achieve positive social impact
 - o fair do not discriminate or create bias
 - explainable because we have a clear and precise understanding of how outputs are produced
 - secure and privacy preserving protect personal information and adhere to regulations related to automated decision making

6. We proactively detect and prevent financial crime

- 6.1 We conduct business with integrity, transparency and openness, and in compliance with applicable laws and in line with policies and standards.
- 6.2 We take individual responsibility for acting to combat financial crime in all its forms, including money laundering, fraud, corruption, bribery, offering services to sanctioned entities, terrorist financing and the facilitation of tax evasion.
- 6.3 We report concerns or incidents internally using appropriate channels, including the independent and confidential whistleblowing hotline.
- 6.4 We report suspicious and unusual transactions to the relevant authorities in accordance with local regulatory requirements.

- 6.5 We have zero tolerance for bribery and corruption. We adhere to Stanbic IBTC policies and procedures and all regulatory requirements to prevent bribery and corruption, and to detect, report, monitor and respond appropriately to any incidents that may occur.
- 6.6 We have zero tolerance for internal fraud.
- 6.7 We do not give, offer, solicit or accept bribes or facilitation payments and do not allow others to make them on our behalf. We take particular care in respect of any payments made to, or at the request of, public officials. We report any requests for bribes or facilitation payments to line management and our business compliance officers.
- 7. We support the orderly, fair and transparent functioning of financial markets and do not engage with anti-competitive behaviour Personal account trading policy
- 7.1 We maintain the highest standards of professional conduct when undertaking financial market transactions, communicating with market participants and handling confidential information.
- 7.2 We adhere to the market abuse control framework which aims to ensure we support the orderly, fair and transparent functioning of financial markets and contribute to the enhancement of financial stability.
- 7.3 We do not participate in anti-competitive behaviour, including collusive approaches to price fixing, tendering, division of markets, establishment of discounts and rebates, or joint boycotts of suppliers or clients.
- 7.4 We do not misuse material non-public and need-to-know information. We adhere to Stanbic IBTC personal account trading policy, including (where applicable) the additional requirements that pertain to embargoed and designated staff.

8. We ensure commission payments are legitimate and legal

8.1 We pay commission for business brought to Stanbic IBTC only to legitimate agents. Such payments must be disclosed. We do not pay commission or fees to agents for the purpose of engaging in illegal or unethical activities, or commissions or fees that cannot reasonably be justified (in nature and amount) for the type of work required.

9. We keep appropriate records

- 9.1 We adhere to applicable regulatory requirements regarding the recording and storage of verbal and written communications when providing services to clients.
- 9.2 We keep records in an appropriate electronic or recorded format, which are accessible and readily reducible to written or printed form.

10. We ensure the accurate public reporting of our financial statements and transparency on tax matters

- 10.1 We commit to balanced and transparent disclosure and reporting of financial and nonfinancial information, aligned to global reporting and other legislative requirements.
- 10.2 We commit to accurate, transparent and timely compliance with the tax laws of the countries where we operate. We will only engage in transactions that have commercial and economic substance in line with the spirit and purpose of the relevant tax legislation.
- 10.3 We foster transparent, constructive and cooperative relationships with tax authorities and other regulators driving tax policy, based on open and honest disclosure and mutual trust.

MAKING VALUE BASED DECISIONS

When faced with a decision or action for which there is no clear principle in the Code of Conduct and Ethics, it is helpful to think of your options using the ACTION principles.

A – Act Responsibly

- Do I have all the information at my disposal?
- Has the information been verified?
- Who is responsible?
- Would my preferred choice create trust among other employees?

C – Consider Stanbic IBTC's values and ethical principles

- Does my preferred choice reflect our value of integrity?
- Is it aligned with other Stanbic IBTC values and principles?

T – Trust your judgment

- Is my preferred choice of action fair?
- Is it the right thing to do?
- How will it look if published on the front page of a newspaper?

I - Identify the impact on stakeholders

- Does my preferred choice of action impact positively on our customers?
- Bearing in mind the fact that Stanbic IBTC values teams, does it impact positively on employees or a team, or on only one individual?
- Does it impact positively on other stakeholders, for example shareholders and society?

O – Obey the Rules

- Does my preferred choice of action comply with relevant laws and regulations?
- Does it comply with the relevant best practice guidelines?
- Does it comply with Stanbic IBTC Policies and procedures?

N – Notify the appropriate persons

- Have I involved the right people to resolve the issue?
- Has communication been open and honest? Have potential problems been disclosed? ?

Glossary of terms

Glossaly of te		
Artificial	Al is the theory and development of computer systems able to perform	
intelligence	human tasks that normally require human intelligence.	
Business area	Stanbic IBTCentity, or any division of such entity, or any corporate function.	
Client	A person or institution that holds or maintains a relationship with the Stanbic IBTCor expresses or indicates an intention to do so, including a consultant, broker, vendor or other service provider.	
Complaint	An expression of dissatisfaction by a person to a business area or, to the knowledge of the business area, to the business area's service provider, relating to a financial product or financial service provided or offered by that business area which indicates or alleges, regardless of whether such an expression of dissatisfaction is submitted together with or in relation to a client query, that – the business area or its service provider has contravened or failed to comply with an agreement, a law, a rule, or a code of conduct which is binding on the bank or to which it subscribes; the business area or its service provider's maladministration or wilful or negligent action or failure to act, has caused the person harm, prejudice, distress, or substantial inconvenience; or the business area or its service provider has treated the person unfairly. 	
Conflict of interest	Instances where the interests of one or more stakeholders are incompatible with one another, or where they have professional or	
	personal interests which are not aligned.	
Personal information	Information about an identifiable, natural or, where applicable, a juristic person, including but not limited to information about: race, gender, pregnancy, marital status, nationality, ethnic or social origin, sexual orientation, age, physical or mental health, well-being, religion, belief, disability, conscience, culture, language, birth; education, identity number, symbol, telephone number, email, postal or street address, location, online identifier or other particular assignment to the person; biometric or medical information and financial, criminal or employment history; personal opinions, views or preferences of the person or of another individual about the person, as well as correspondence sent by the person that is implicitly or explicitly of a private or confidential nature or further correspondence that would reveal the contents of the original correspondence; the name of the person if it appears with other information or the disclosure of which will reveal information about the person.	

Platform		
Public official	Means a person holding a legislative, administrative or judicial office, whether by appointment, election or succession, or any person exercising a public function, including for a public agency or public enterprise, or any official or agent of a public domestic or international organisation, or any candidate for public office outside the country or jurisdiction where the employee and/or activity is based. The concept of 'public official' is very wide and can include employees of state-owned enterprises, local or foreign, (including subsidiaries and foreign branches thereof), in addition to more prominent local or national government employees.	
Related party	A spouse, partner or any other dependant relative who lives with the employee, or for whom the employee provides material financial support.	
Supplier	A current or potential supplier, contractor, manufacturer, agent, consultant or service provider to Stanbic IBTC, also commonly known as a vendor.	

Name	Role
Carol Olayi	Head, People and Culture
Adewale Aina	Head, Compliance
Chidi Okezie	Head, Legal Services
Wole Adeniyi	Chief Executive, Stanbic IBTC Bank

EMPLOYEE ATTESTATION

I confirm that I have read the Code of Conduct.

Signature

Date